William Eliot Barrows (1842-1901) was intrigued by technology and while serving as the treasurer, manager and president of the Willimantic Linen Co. between 1874 and 1883, he experimented with electric lighting in company housing, in the mills and at two company parks in the borough.

The Oaks' attractive worker cottages still survive and constitute one of Willimantic's most pleasant neighborhoods, but on enter-Quercus Avenue nothing today remains of the Oaks Park, one of Willimantic's late 19th century social centers. The baseball park does not attract the crowds that milled around at the end of the 19th century.

8

A dispute had raged in Willi-mantic after the Civil War whether to develop a central location as a public recreation park. However, all efforts failed to provide a downtown park because land prices in central Willimantic were booming and silk factories were more profitable than parks. In 1872 at the height of the passionate public park debate, a Willimantic Journal editorial argued against a city park because 'a five minute drive in any direc-'tion will take us out to as much rural scenery and simplicity as the most ardent lover of nature could desire." The editor of the Windham Transcript disagreed:

"Lands must be opened where citizens can stroll without trespass and where ladies and children can find a safe and pleasant retreat from the dangers and dust

of the streets.

A place for the elevation and enjoyment of a man's family is of more consequence than what his income will be. A park is one of the inevitable necessaries of the age and no place with more than 1,000 inhabitants can afford to be without one. Willimantic will never have a better opportunity or see a time when for so small an investment she could secure to herself such useful pieces of ground. In not purchasing the grounds, the borough has dealt Willimantic a blow it will not be able to eradicate.'

A park was not forthcoming in Willimantic, until William Bar-rows provided one some 10 years later. Barrows realized that his workers had nowhere to go to relax after work other than to the saloons. He had very little control over their drinking habits, but he believed that a landscaped public and a dancing pavilion would provide him with a certain amount of control. A sober workforce was a more industrious workforce



William Eliot Barrows, 1890

Oaks cottages were completed in 1881, Barrows arranged a free band concert in the oak the grove adjacent to the new houses, at the junction of Quercus

Tom Beardsley

Avenue and the highway to Franklin and Norwich. Generations of Willimantic residents had visited the pleasant grove of oak trees on the outskirts of town to enjoy the pastoral and agrarian delights, to picnic and escape the grind of the growing industrial city. Barrows concert in the oak grove took place on Sept. In May 1881, and was a success. 1882, William Eliot Barrows became the Linen Co.'s president.

gaining further control of the company's purse strings began plans for the Oaks Park on the site of the old oak grove.

In July 1882, the Willimantic Linen Co.'s carpenters labored long and hard to fit up the grove at the Oaks with seats, swivel swings and a large covered dancing pavilion, "for the benefit, use and pleasure of the working people of the company and such of their friends whom they may invite." On Aug. 5, 1882, Willimantic's new resort was officially opened. Free food was laid on for an organized "social hop." Fresh drinking water was piped from the source which supplied the cottages in the Oaks. A refreshment booth sold ice cream and soda. At last Willimantic had a public park.

Continued next week



Weather Report

FORECAST

Tonight: Partly cloudy. Low 18. Friday: Snow, ice. High 34.

TOMORROW'S TIDES New London: 9:24 a.m./9:48 p.m.

Noank: 9:02 a.m./9:26 p.m. 8:52 a.m./9:16 p.m. Stonington:

Saturday: Morning rain. High 41. Sunday: Cloudy, High 24. Low

3:15 a.m./3:54 p.m. 3:07 a.m./3:46 p.m. 2:34 a.m./3:13 p.m.

Advertisement



BEST SODA FLAVORS 423-1555

http://hosmer.pds2k.com

Advertisement

CURTISS Coins & Jewelry 794 MAIN ST., WILLIMANTIĆ 456-2442

Turn Your Unwanted or Broken Jewelry into

BAS

We Pay the Highest Prices in the Area

BUY • SELL • PAWN

"Time & Again"

Historical Tidbits presented by the Chronicle every Thursday.

Tom Beardsleys's column with photo's and memories from Windham County's past. Features on people and places that make this area of the county what it is today

We're looking for photos, anecdotes, diaries, musings as well as historical society events.

"Time & Again"

proves what happened yesterday is still interesting today!

Send submissions to:

T. Karmel@The Chronicle One Chronicle Road, Willimantic, CT 06226 or email: tkarmel@thechronicle.com To advertise: Call 423-8466

Chronicle

The Willimantic Public Library. All Tom's articles "The Chronicle" for are grateful to the copyright owner, Further reproduction prohibited without permission This digitized version of Tom Beardsley's article is made possible by at the library. much more Willimantic history can be accessed reproduce this article. permission to

0